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& Met i it Syste
%\\[\*‘ Metropolitan Transit System

TN

1255 Imperial Averiue, Suite 1000
Sani Diego, CA 82101-7490
(619) 231-1468 » FAX (618) 234-8407

Jung 16,2006

‘The Bodrd of Directors:and Transit Riders
San Diego Metropelitan
Transit System:-

The comprehensive: anpual financial report of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit Systém (MTS) for the
fiseal year ended June 30, 2004 is bereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
the comipleteness. and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management.
Managerent of MTS is resporisible for establishing and maintaining an internal control strugture designed
1o ensure that the assets of MTS are protected ffom loss, theft, or misusé and to ensure that adequate
aseounting data are cotnpiled to allow fo the preparation of financial statements in gonformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stafes of America (GAAP). The internal control
L. structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute; assurance that these. objectives. are met. The
concept of reasonable: assurance Tecognizes that (1) the cost of a control should ‘not-exeeed the benefits
F likely to be derived and (2)the valuation of costs and benefits requires ‘estimates and judgments by
}‘_ ' ‘managemént, As management, we assert that, 10 the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report
complete and religble in all material respects.

KPMG LLP
was 0 provide reasonable
yeat ended June 30, 2004 4t free of material

;o State statutes require an- annual audit by independent certified public acconntanis.
1' has begn retainied to meet this requirenient, The goal of the independent a it 3
sssurance that the fingncial statements of MTS for the fiscal ye '
r misstatement. The independent’audit involved exar g, '
\ and. disclosures in the fimancial statements; assessing the accounting prineiples
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent avditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a téasonable basis for renderiig an
. nngualified opinion fhat MTS financial statementd for the fiseal year snded hine30, 2004 ate fairly
L_ﬁ-_: presented, fn a1l material respeets, in conformity with GAAP. The independent-ayditors’ igport is presented
as the first component of the financial section of this report. '

f The independent andit also was desigied to meet the reguiréments of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” to mieet the:special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards g0 g Single Audit

ehgagements requite the independent auditor 1o, zeport not oxily on the fiir presentation ‘of the' financial
statements, but also on the:audited government’s internal controlsand compliance with legal requirgments,
with special emphasis on intemal controls and legal requirements invelving the administration of federal
swairds. The reports related specifically to the Single Audit are igsued under separate cover.

}{‘él,etmpdli_i_lex'; Transht Systemn IMTS) & comgxised-of 1he Melripalitan Transit Oevelopment Board (MTDB), 4 Caliigrria public’ sgency, Sen Diggo Transit Gorp., gnel Sari Diega Trolley., tne.,
i couperation wih Chuts Vista Transit and Netional Gity Transit, MTS 1 ths taxicab administrater for sigit cities. MTDS is owner of the San Dizge and Adzena Eastem Flalfway Company.
fjff TOR membar agenaiss inciude: City of Chuls Vista, Clty of Carenarla, City of B Cajon, Gity of Imperial Beach, City of La Mesa, Gity of Lemon Grove, City of Natfonial City, Clty of Poway.
City ! San Dizge, Dty of Sanies, and the Gounty of S35 Diega. ‘




MTS maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with the provisions
‘efobodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the board of directors. Activities of the General
Fiind, Special Revenue Funds, Debt:Service Funds, and Capitat PIQJGGtS ind are included in the annual
appmpuatsd budgets. Comprehensive multiyear financial platy, adopted svhen major projects are approved
- forthe final design and construction phase, provide project: bidgetary control in the Capital Projects
Fund. The portion of cests expected to be incurred on each ptoject during the fiscal year is included ia the
AR 1;1 opjs:rating budget. Trhe. leivél a’f budgctary cantrol. (_that' is; - th -_level at whu..h expendltures cannot

arr encumbmnce accoummg systcm as one tcchmqne of : sn’nn bnddetary cont:rol Encumbcred
amounts lapse at year end. However, encumbrances are svaluated and may be Ieappropnatcd as pait of the:
following year’s budget.

ﬁﬂanmal statcmcnis in the fonn O?F N' _.l
transmittal s designed to complement the MD&A. an d bo rea
can befound immediately following the rep'orf of the »-'inde__pendént:audimrs.

Réll‘wr-;ﬁﬁg Fatity

Santee, :md San Dlegu and‘ the -

vute O "-ratmg entities pmwda the

Dmﬂo metropeh tan area resments and. &151 Or8 by

«  Obtaining maximum benefit for every dollar spent

s  Being the community’s major public transportation-advocate

»  nereasingpublic trapsportation usage:per capita

»  Taking a customer-oriented appfoach,

*  Offering high-quality public fransportation services

&  PRespohding to the community’s:$otio-cconomic interests.

Effective. January 1, 2003, Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) took effect, which copsolidated the planning,.
programming, project deveiepment and construgtion .activities of the San Diego Asseeidfion -of
Govemments (SANDAG), MTS, and North San Diego County Transit Development Board (NCTD) within
SANDAG. The legislation called for an initial trangfer of the planning and programming functions from
MTS to BANDAG by July 1, 2003 dnd a subsequent trangfer of the projest development and construction.

fimetioms by Janvary 30, 2004. Now: that the cofisolidation is complate MTS” focus has shifted 1o transit
service. operations, as SANDAG, in its newly configured role, is responsible for all other facets of

iy
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© MTS is effectively an nuibrella agéncy. MTS owns the assets of San Diego Trol

I
\‘;.:

transportation planning, programming, and development. MTS hag oné voling member on the
nine-member Transportation Cormiittes within SANDAG. The Transpottation Coimmttee assurned, the:
responsibility and decision-making for.all ﬁmpmtatmn-related plannmg, pregxg, and development
sctivities. In accordance with the legislafion, the planning and progra ns ‘wiere: trazisferied to
SANDAG: on July 1, 2003, and. the, project development and constmctxou Activities were traisferred to
SANDAG on October 13, 2003.

Diego Trausit Corporation (SD’I‘C}, & ared’¥ two largest transit. operatora These i ST
formed under Califorsia law as not-for-prafit-public cmpemhons and function as operating subs;dtames of
MTS. SDTI and SDTC -are sonsidered vomporient units and are blended congpone s for financial
repamng PUrpOSES. SDTI operstes two L TFransit (LRT) Toutes; th Ry
San Diege Station to San ¥sidro at the Intethafional Berder and the Orangé
124}y Bayside Platform through Cenfre City and then east to Santee. In
Extension, known as the Green Line, began service. With this addition e :
opetates'en u total of 54.3 miles.of track. SDTC operates 29 routes with:an active fleet of 275 btxses

The relationship between MTS and the fransit operating subsidiafies, ‘SDTI dnd. SPTC, is formally
established through operating acreemants and . dopted corperate. ‘policies. These agreements and
cmperate nohmes sjpeclﬁf the rcq—--- ﬂmes of each of the" Orgmnza ns ;md ouﬂmt. the

1) h pcramm and.
develoPment of MTS tmmlt oper'\tmg mi it 1 3 ¢ appreval of capital

expendifures by or on behalf of these ef fes. The day—te—day eyaratiﬁ ; ﬁmcﬁons labor mafters, and
maintenance of facilities are‘inanaged by the individa] transit operators.

Statting in July of 2004 and continuing Forward, MTS has begun 9 rentralize and. consolidate rodny
fimetions within. SDTI and SDTC. These include Planning, Human Resonm;as,-Fmaﬁce,;ané Purchasing..
This'is a gradual process that has been ongoingand will continug fox somietme.

In sddition, MTS owns the San Diego and Arizona Eastemn Railway CoHip:
raﬂmad holding company entrusted with assets; which:inelude 108:miles:of x
: ' has a contract wﬂh the San Dlego and Impamal Va

-(SE&AE): & not—for-proﬁt

it for Francial rgpgmng bﬁrpgc;@s ¢, eddeafell 153 CORSIITH/ & LOUPELAE WA s

1n 'sdshuen ta the bu‘?- routes me‘atcd by SD’I’C MTS is financially accountable for the: operati n—‘ef certam

sitle pﬁr'ty for the operatmn of "these bus routes

cEs ) 3 accounte& for in the.

a for 1 ng P e Jidly 1, 2002, the

respcmsxbxhty for operannu the Ccmmy Transd fom (CTS) was tmnsf frorn the- County of San

Diego to MTS. ‘CTS operating services are combined with the Other Contracted Servxccs Enterprise Fund
for financial reporting purposes.

MTS also is financially accountable for the operanoﬂ of Takicab Administration services, which includes-
regulating the issnance of taxi and jitney service pennits in the Cities of Jan Dmgo, El Cajon, Imperial
Beach, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santce. Taxicab Administration is: accounted for-in. an
Enterprise Fund for financial reporting purposes.

W



The MTS board. of direstors is comprised of 15 members with four appointed from the San Dxego Cxty
Council, one appoitted frora the San Diego County Beard of Supervisors, one: appointed fom
council of Chula Vistd, Coronddo; Bl Cajen, Ixnpcml Beach, La Mesa, Lemon vae,vNanona[ Cxty,
Poway, and Santee, and one-glééted by other Board meribers to serve as Chairman,

Economic Condijtion and Outlook
Operations

Histotically, the San Die;
national economies. Ban.
ecenomy, was estimated at $13
less than the mmanal ay,
declined by 2.0%
the aysteii, Tt
daily ridership.

sgion hias enjoyed strong economic expansmn, ouspacing; both:the state and
'S Bross ¥ gmnj produc’c (GRP), the estimated total valbe of the regions’
‘ 004. Tlns as & growth. of3,9% tter than the state but

4. The apening of Petco Park in Apr] 2004 has bro
f the Mission Valley East line is expected to add an

occum:d in 20 i and beyend_
Major Initinsives
Wuh the chan

folﬂ, E—i‘r's’: if':i;eitaf :
and better servics 10

' 1thets as-& pnonty ﬂmdé for provxdmz
ed to-coincide with:available recamring
- revenues elirsinates structural defcits

: service levels oan be effectively evi
rt:Vnnues ’\Aatc hing- erL Service level 16 aviilable reeurrm
that have produced ehallenges For VTS for the lagt fcw years,




The Mission Valley East (MVE) LRT Line opened in July 2005, It-extends 5.8 wmiles between Interstate 15
in Mission Valley to Baltimore Drive in La Mesa primarily along the I-8 corridor. It has added four
stations and the first tunnel for MTS. In opening Missien Valley East,a new green {ine service was
initiated. Fhis consists of previous blue stations from Old Town to Mission San Diego and the four new
stations to form the new green line.

Financial Management
Debt Administration

Capital Leases —MTS lias two capitalized lease obligations with current year debt service of 33.2 million.
Bath the lease obligations dre 4 result of a joit Venture srrangement whereby the joint venture issned
certificates of participation (COPs) and MTS services the:-debt through lease payients.

The 1990 $41,020,000 COP issue, which related to the -acquisition of 130replacement buses, was
refinanced with the California Transit Finance Corporation in February 2002, at which time it received an
underlying rating-of Al from Moody*s Invistors S sed 50

issue which-related to the-construction of the MTS Towe

: oui the strength of MTS. On the COP
¢ fating, which was based on the stiength of
the jeint venture and the primary lessor (the County of San:Diego), was Asa by Moody’s Investors Sepvice
and AAA by Standard & Poor’s Corporation. )

Finance Obligations — MTS has four finance obligations. Total del
The finance: obligations are the result of Light Rail Vehicle (L.

: V) salefleasehack and lease/leaseback

transactions, and issuanee of Certificates of Participation to- fund the automated fare collection project and
the regional transit management priject. In each cise; proesads from these transactions were placed into
various {ovestments that matime at values sufficient 16 €6 er all remaiting obligations as well as amounts
necessary to exercise the repurchage options where applicable.

Cash Mandgetnent

To facilitate optimum management of MTS’ tesoutces, cash inall the individual fiinds is conmbined to form
« poul of cash for short-term investmert, except for yestr{cted fiinds, which are generally held by outside
custodians on behalf of capital projects and enterprise fimds. MTS* funds are invested in acenrdance with

icy; which s consi th the California Government Code 53600. MTS uses the:services
m oltside invéstment management fitm to handle the daily investment activities. Further details of
MTS’ cash-and investments at June 30, 2004 arg-sét forth in niote 4 16 the financial statements.

Risk Management

MTS (including Texicab Administration and Othier
againgt the adverse:consequences of material or fir

Contracted Services), SDTI, and SDTC are. protected

meial logs through:a balanged program of risk retention
and the purchase of commercial iusurance. MTS, SDTL and SDTC are ifisuted for liability, property, and
workers’ vompensation claims under a combined msurance program. Claims in excess of ‘the various.
deductibles and.self-insured retention amounts which range. from$30,000 to $2,000,000, are insured with
cominercial carriers up to $75,000,000 for liability and up to $400,000,000 for property damage. At
June 30, 2004, MTS was holding investments of $2,000,000 which have been designated by the MTS
board of direstors for purposes of funding fiture claims liabilities 6f MTS, S8DTI, and SDTC.




Other Infermation

Awdrds .

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Bxcellénce in Financial Reporting to MTS for its comprehensive. annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June. 30, 2003. This was the eleventh consecutive year that MIS
Tias Teceived this prestigious award. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of tec ofi:for
sxpellence in state angd local government: financial reperting. In order to be awarded a ‘Ci
Achievement, MTS must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized compreh arniial
financial report which comforms t6- program standards. This report satisfied both generally accepted
aAccounting principles and applicabla: legal requirements, The Cert ficate of Achievement is valid for a
period of one year only. B ‘
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KPMG LLP

Suite 700

600 Anton Boulevard

Costa Mesa, CA 92626-7651

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the San Diego Metropolitan
Transit System (MTS) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise MTS’
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of

MTS’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions. '

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System as of June 30,
2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Subsidiary Pass-Through Fund and the

TransNet Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As described in note 1(a), MTS business type activities net assets as of June 30, 2003 were restated as
MTS changed the components of its reporting entity.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 through 25, and Required Supplementary
Information — Funded Status of Pension Plans on page 70, are not a required part of the financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

11

KPMG LLP. a U.S. limited liability partnership, is the U.S.
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise MTS’ financial statements. The introductory section, the capital assets used in the operation of
governmental funds information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements. The capital assets used in the operation of
governmental funds information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole. The information in the introductory and statistical sections has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

KPMe LIP

June 16, 2006
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2004

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit
System (MTS) is intended to provide an overview of MTS’ financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004. This information should be used in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which can be found on
pages 1 through 6 of this report.

Financial Highlights

. Net assets, as reported in the statement of net assets, totaled $1,144,742,959 as of June 30, 2004. Of this
amount, $(52,072,512) is unrestricted deficit. Total net assets increased by $10,788,268.

. As of June 30, 2004, MTS’ governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $205,685,597,
an increase of $23,043,444 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount, $25,345,574 is available for
spending at MTS’ discretion (unreserved fund balance).

. For the year ended June 30, 2004, the combined farebox recovery ratio (the measure of the ability to
recover operating costs through fare revenue) for San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego Transit Corporation,
and MTS Contracted Services was 37.7%, compared to 39.7% for the previous year. A number of factors
have brought about this decrease, principally the MTS-area ridership decrease.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to MTS’ financial statements. MTS’ financial
statements comprise three components: 1) governmentwide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,

and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
financial statements themselves. '

Governmentwide financial statements. The governmentwide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of MTS’ finances in 2 manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of MTS’ assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of .
whether the financial position of MTS is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this

statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the governmentwide financial statements distinguish functions of MTS that are principally supported by
grant revenue and subsidies (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of MTS include general government, transit support activities and transit operations funding. The
business-type activities of MTS include transit services that are operated on a contracted basis with third parties
and the taxicab regulatory function. In addition, the governmentwide financial statements include not only MTS
itself (known as the primary government), but also two legally separate transit operators and one legally separate
freight railway, for which MTS is financially accountable: San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI), San Diego Transit
Corporation (SDTC), and San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company (SD&AE).

13 ' (Continued)



~ SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysts

June 30, 2004

The governmentwide financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 31 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. MTS uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of MTS can be divided into
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. However, unlike the govermmentwide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmentwide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

MTS maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund, the Subsidy Pass-Through Special Revenue Fund, the TransNet Special Revenue Fund, the
Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

MTS adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, and the Capital
Projects Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and major Spemal
Revenue Funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 through 38 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds (a proprietary fund type) are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the governmentwide financial statements. MTS uses enterprise funds to account for its
Taxicab Administration and Other Contracted Services, as well as SDTI, SDTC, and SD&AE

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governmentwide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for SDTI, SDTC, and Other
Contracted Services, a major fund of MTS. Taxicab Administration and SD&AE are reported together as

nonmajor proprietary funds of MTS. In addition, MTS prepares individual financial statements for SDTI and
SDTC.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 39 through 41 of this report.
Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding

of the data provided in the governmentwide and fund financial statements. The notes to financial statements can
be found on pages 43 through 69 of this report.

14 (Continued)
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" SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2004

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning MTS’ progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on page 71 of this report.

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of MTS, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,145 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of MTS’ net assets reflects the investment in capital assets, net of related debt ($9.4 million).
Most of the investment in capital assets is comprised of trolley system assets, buses, and construction in progress
totaling $446 million, of which the largest project currently under construction is the Mission Valley East light
rail extension (currently $414 million). The capital assets that are represented by the construction in progress will
be used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Net assets for business-type activities as reported in FY 2003 and FY 2004 are not comparable because MTS
changed its reporting entity in 2004. In prior years, SDTI and SDTC were presented as discretely presented
component units with net assets of $676 million and were not included in the business-type activities statement
of net assets. (See note 1(a) in the accompanying notes to the financial statements).

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
June 30,2004 June 30, 2004 June 30, 2004
Current and other assets $ 291,422,800 22,624,145 314,046,945
Capital assets 475,542,475 692,096,401 1,167,638,876
Total assets 766,965,275 714,720,546 1,481,685,821
Long-term liabilities outstanding 195,220,525 18,188,986 213,409,511
Other liabilities : 93,343,856 30,189,495 123,533 351
Total liabilities 288,564,381 48,378,481 336,942,862
Net assets (deficit):
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 466,166,119 692,096,401 1,158,262,520
Restricted 38,552,951 — 38,552,951
Unrestricted (26,318,176) (25,754,336) (52,072,512)
Total pet assets 478,400,894 666,342,065 1,144,742,959
15 (Continued)




" SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2004

The $50.6 million decrease in net assets for business-type activities during FY 2004 was due largely to current
year net operating losses related to depreciation expense, reduced ridership, increased pension costs, and disposal
of obsolete buses with a net book value of $5.4 million.

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
June 30, 2003 June 30, 2003 June 30, 2003
Current and other assets $ 230,641,772 6,441,944 237,083,716
Capital assets _ 409,195,745 40,524,197 449,719,942
Total assets 639,837,517 46,966,141 686,803,658
Long-term liabilities outstanding 167,945,094 — 167,945,094
Other liabilities 54,859,879 6,327,870 . 61,187,749
Total liabilities : 222,804,973 6,327,870 229,132,843
Net assets (deficit):
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 398,988,253 40,524,197 439,512,450
Restricted 16,739,379 - 16,739,379
Unrestricted 1,304,912 114,074 1,418,986
Total net assets $ 417,032,544 40,638,271 457,670,815

An additional portion of MTS’ June 30, 2004 net assets, $38.6 million (3.4%), represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets
(deficit) ($52.1 million) represents decreases in net assets related to operating losses at SDTI and SDTC and

increased borrowing at MTS.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2004

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased MTS’ net assets by $10 million. Key elements of

this increase are as follows:

2004
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ — 65,708,920 65,708,920
Operating grants and contributions 78,201,891 93,410,080 171,611,971
Capital grants and contributions 144,901,439 — 144,901,439
General revenues: .
Interest income 6,288,711 — 6,288,711
Indirect cost recovery 2,456,925 — 2,456,925
Total revenues 231,348,966 159,119,000 390,967,966
Expenses:
General government 6,340,093 — 6,340,093
Transit support activities 803,816 — 803,816
Transit operations funding 76,521,882 — 76,521,882
Transit planning 225,020 — 225,020
Transit capital funding 16,764,717 — 16,764,717
Interest on long-term debt 8,151,473 —_ 8,151,473
Transportation — 213,767,994 213,767,994
Total expenses 108,807,001 213,767,994 322,574,995
Increase (decrease) in net assets
before capital contributions and
transfers 123,041,965 (54,648,994) 68,392,971
Capital contributions 128,356 3,565,912 3,694,268
Transfers (493,000) 493,000 —
Extraordinary item (61,308,971) — (61,308,971)
Increase in net assets 61,368,350 (50,590,082) 10,778,268
Net assets — July 1, 2003, as restated 417,032,544 716,932,147 1,133,964,691
Net assets — June 30, 2004 $ 478,400,894 666,342,065 1,144,742,959
17 (Continued)
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June 30, 2004

Capital and operating grants and contributions continue to be a major portion of the revenue used to fund transit
operations and capital projects. Reported business-type activities for FY 2003 and FY 2004 are not comparable
due to the change in MTS’ reporting entity in FY 2004. (See note 1 (a) in the accompanying notes to the financial
statements). Variances between FY 2004 and FY 2003 governmental activities are attributable to capital funding
" decreases related to the nearing completion of the Mission Valley East extension and the transfer of construction
projects in process to SANDAG pursuant to the provisions of SB 1703.

2003
Governmental  Business-type
activities activities Total
Revenues:

Program revenues: '
Charges for services — 15,771,282 15,771,282
Operating grants and contributions 80,861,844 30,266,537 111,128,381
Capital grants and contributions 187,649,330 — 187,649,330

General revenues:

Interest income 15,812,371 — 15,812,371
Indirect cost recovery 5,556,123 — 5,556,123
Total revenues 289,879,668 46,037,819 335,917,487

Expenses:

General government 12,356,944 — 12,356,944

Transit support activities 6,639,390 — 6,639,390

Transit operations funding 69,343,923 — 69,343,923

Transit planning 2,827,540 — 2,827,540

Transit capital funding 7,724,461 — 7,724,461

Interest on long-term debt 7,647,986 — 7,647,986

Transportation — 51,096,119 51,096,119

Total expensés 106,540,244 51,096,119 157,636,363
Increase (decrease) in net assets
before capital contributions and
transfers 183,339,424 (5,058,300) 178,281,124
Capital contributions (1,887,128) 12,729,734 10,842,606
Transfers (928,249) 928,249 —
Increase in net assets 180,524,047 8,599,683 189,123,730
Net assets — July 1, 2002 236,508,497 32,038,588 268,547,085
Net assets — June 30, 2003 * 417,032,544 40,638,271 457,670,815

*

These net assets to do include the net assets of SDTI and SDTC as these entities were presented as discretely

presented component units during the year ended June 30, 2003. (See note 1(a) in the accompanying notes to
the financial statements).
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities — FY 04
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
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June 30, 2004

Business-type Activities. In FY 2004, the business-type activities consist of private contracting of bus service,
the taxicab regulatory function, SDTI, SDTC, and SD&AE. In FY 2003, business-type activities included only
private contracting of bus service and the taxicab regulatory function.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities —~ FY 04
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities — FY 04
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) Operating grants and contributions continue to fund the majority of the business-type activities, with fare
revenues funding the balance.

. Net assets attributable to MTS’ business-type activities decreased to $666.3 million from $716.9 million.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, MTS uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements.
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Governmental funds. The focus of MTS’ governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing MTS’ financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, MTS’
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $205.7 million, an increase of 12.6% in
comparison with the prior year. :

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of MTS. At the end of each fiscal year, MTS transfers aﬁy excess
funds in the General Fund to the Subsidy Pass-Through Special Revenue Fund where it is deposited in the MTS
Contingency Reserve (part of unreserved fund balance of the Subsidy Pass-Through Special Revenue Fund).

Therefore, at the end of the current year, there was no undesignated unreserved fund balance in the General
Fund. ‘

The fund balance of MTS’ General Fund increased by $531 thousand.

The Subsidy Pass-Through Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the subsidy funds collected on
behalf of and passed through to the component units. It is also used to account for the fund balance reserves
maintained for capital replacement and other purposes. The Subsidy Pass-Through Fund has a total fund balance
of $19.0 million, of which $31 thousand is considered reserved because of third-party legal restrictions. The
remainder $19.0 million is unreserved, of which $10.3 million is designated by the MTS Board for specific uses.
The net decrease in the fund balance during the current year was $11.0 million. The funds were used during the
current year for operating purposes and for the local match to federal capital grants.

The TransNet Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the funds received pursuant to the one-half cent
local sales tax increase resulting from the passage of Proposition A by area voters in 1987. The TransNet Fund

has a total fund balance of $23.8 million, all of which is considered unreserved, designated. The net increase in

the fund balance during the current year was $11.8 million attributable to the timing of TransNet receipts and
related expenditures.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all the capital projects undertaken by MTS. The Capital Projects
Fund has a total negative fund balance of $17.7 million. The negative fund balance is attributed to funds spent on
the Automated Fare Collection project that were funded on a cash basis through the MTS contingency reserve. In
October 2003, debt was issued to pay for this project, and the proceeds were recorded in the debt service fund.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for all the debt service incurred by MTS. The ending fund balance was
$179.9 million, all of which is restricted for debt service purposes and is therefore considered reserved. The net
increase in the fund balance during the current year was $31.9 million as a result of the issuance of new debt.

Proprietary funds. MTS’ proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the governmentwide
financial statements, but in more detail.

The net assets balance of the Other Contracted Services Fund is approximately $36.8 million, most of which is
invested in fixed assets. The remainder $118,775 is unrestricted. The total reduction in net assets for Other

Contracted Services is approximately $3.8 million attributable to depreciation expense totaling $4.2 million for
the current year.
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The net assets balance in SDTI is $581 million, $587 million of which is invested in fixed assets and the
remaining $(6.3) million deficit is unrestricted. The total reduction in net assets for 2004 is approximately
$30 million, consisting primarily of depreciation expense. The net assets balance in SDTC is $47.6 million,
$67.6 million of which is invested in fixed assets, and the remaining $(19.9) million deficit is unrestricted. The
total reduction in net assets for 2004 is approximately $17 million due to reduced ridership, increased pension
costs, and disposal of obsolete buses with a net book value of $5.4 million.

The net assets balance in nonmajor funds is $816 thousand, $475 thousand of which is invested in fixed assets
and the remaining $341 thousand is unrestricted. The total increase in net assets for 2004 is $306 thousand due to

the one-time receipt of additional fees in the Taxicab administration fund related to changes in ownership
assessments.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the General Fund original budget and thé final amended budget were $3,026,775 (decrease
in appropriations) and can be summarized as follows:

J $2,648,775 decrease in personnel expenditures in general government activities
. $378,000 decreases in transit support activities.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. MTS’ investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2004 amounts to $1,168 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and construction in progress. The total increase in MTS’
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 15.6% increase for governmental activities.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

. Construction continued on the Mission Valley East light rail extension with $119.9 million expended in the
current fiscal year, bringing the total construction in progress for this project to $413.9 million.

. Construction continued on the 12th and Market Station Retrofit with $7.2 million expended in the current
fiscal year, bringing the total construction in progress for this project to $7.9 million.

. Construction continued on the San Ysidro Intermodal Transportation Center with $8.4 million expended in
the current fiscal year, bringing the total construction in progress for this project to $23.2 million.

. Due to the implementation of Senate Bill 1703, $68.9 million in construction projects were transferred to

'SANDAG.
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' SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
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June 30, 2004
Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation)
2003
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
Land $ 21,957,196 167,054,480 $ 189,011,676
Buildings 7,334,221 338,899,110 346,233,331
Vehicles 62,464 181,363,974 181,426,438
Equipment 219,202 4,778,837 4,998,039
Construction in progress 445,969,392 — 445,969,392
475,542 475 692,096,401 1,167,638,876

Capitai assets for business-type activities are not comparable to the amounts reported in FY 2003, which did not
include SDTI and SDTC. (See note 1(a) in the accompanying notes to the financial statements).

2003
Governmental Business-type
activities activities : Total
Land $ 21,957,196 809,692 § 22,766,888
Buildings 7,752,648 3,647,871 11,400,519
Vehicles 102,259 35,762,199 35,864,458
Equipment 192,462 304,435 496,897
Construction in progress 379,191,180 — 379,191,180
409,195,745 40,524,197 449,719,942

Additional information on MTS’ capital assets can be found in note 5 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, MTS had two capital lease obligations outstanding in the
amount of $10.3 million. In addition, MTS has four finance obligations outstanding relating to one sale/leaseback
transaction entered into in 1990, one lease/leaseback transaction entered into in 1995, and certificates of
participation issued in 2002 and 2004, for a total obligation of $190.0 million. With the lease/leaseback
transactions, MTS placed funds on deposit which, together with the interest earned on the deposits, will be
sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligations. MTS entered into a finance obligation
October 2002 for $17.8 million to finance a regional transit management system to provide intelligent
transportation system and radio communication services. In October 2003, MTS entered into a finance obligation
for $32.9 million to finance the regional automated fare collection system project.
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Bond Ratings

Moody’s Investor’s service provided an intrinsic rating for the Regional Transit Management System certificates
of participation at Aaa in 2002, for the Automated Fare Collection certificates of participation at Aaa in 2003,
and for the Revenue Anticipation Notes at MIG-1 in 2004.

Additional information on MTS’ long-term debt can be found in note 7 to the financial statements.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of MTS’ finances for all those with an interest in
the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, MTS, 1255 Imperial Avenue,
Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101. '
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
Primary gov‘érnment
Business-
Governmental type
Assets activities activities " Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,424 832 999,142 9,423,974
Investments 13,394,921 — 13,394,921
Accounts and other receivables 502,675 4,265,127 4,767,802
Accounts receivable from other governments 97,955,185 3,170,736 101,125,921
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable — (684,692) (684,692)
Internal balances (6,131,381) 6,131,381 —
Materials and supplies inventory — 7,272,909 7,272,509
Prepaid items and other assets 727,216 1,460,905 2,188,121
Cash and cash equivalents
designated for self-insurance programs 244,996 — 244,996
Total current assets 115,118,444 22,615,508 137,733,952
Restricted assets:
Cash and certificates of deposit
restricted for capital support 13,092,724 8,637 13,101,361
Cash and cash equivalents
restricted for debt service 10,665,046 — 10,665,046
Investments restricted for debt service 151,641,239 — 151,641,239
Total restricted assets 175,399,009 8,637 175,407,646
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred issuance costs 905,347 — 905,347
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 475,542 475 692,096,401 1,167,638,876
Total noncurrent assets 476,447,822 692,096,401 1,168,544,223
Total assets 766,965,275 714,720,546 1,481,685,821
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Compensated absences payable, current portion

Retentions payable

Notes payable

Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable
Qutstanding fare tokens and tickets

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims,

current portion
Deferred revenue

Total current Liabilities

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Retentions payable
Long-term debt
Capital support funds

Total liabilities payable from
restricted assets

Noncurrent liabilities:
. Compensated absences payable, net of
current portion
Accrued damage, injury, and
employee claims, net of current portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004

$

Primary government
Business-
Governmental type
activities activities Total
48,199,189 11,763,861 59,963,050
110,342 4,953,039 5,063,381
159,991 3,852,066 4,012,057
546,819 10,000 556,819
20,000,000 — 20,000,000
5,819,127 — 5,819,127
166,860 — 166,860
—_ 632,437 632,437
2,716,203 7,270,330 9,986,533
2,532,601 1,699,125 4,231,726
80,251,132 30,180,858 110,431,990
13,092,724 — 13,092,724
162,306,285 — 162,306,285
— 8,637 8,637
175,399,009 8,637 175,407,646
180,416 7,436,408 7,616,824
— 10,752,578 10,752,578
32,733,824 — 32,733,824
32,914,240 18,188,986 51,103 226
288,564,381 48,378,481 336,942,862
463,491,969 692,096,401 1,155,588,370
38,552,951 — 38,552,951
(26,318,176) (25,754,336) (52,072,512)
475,726,744 666,342,065 1,142,068,809
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 31) are different because:

Net change in fund balances—total governmental funds (page 34)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. In the current year, $16.8 million paid to fund
capital projects in process currently owned by SANDAG was reported as an expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issnance
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 31)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
General Fund ’

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual

Revenues:
. Federal funds
State funds
Local Transportation Development Act funds
Other funds
Interest income
Indirect cost recovery

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government:
Personnel
Board of directors
Professional services
Insurance
Rent
Other general office expenditures
Miscellaneous
Transit support activities
Transit planning '

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses
~ Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with

. final budget —
Budgeted amounts Actual positive
Original Final amounts (negative)
— — 177,885 177,885
8,009,536 5,463,796 5,475,771 11,975 =
992,000 942,000 886,462 (55,538) l
— — 157,200 157,200 !
4,500,000 2,350,000 2,456,925 106,925
13,501,536 8,755,796 9,154,243 398,447 - I
7,100,000 4,513,025 - 4,668,491 ¢! 55,466) B }
135,000 141,000 109,265 31,735 ]
295,000 295,000 337,300 (42,300) '
848,000 848,000 470,253 371,747 .
1,170,000 1,170,000 321,464 848,536 -
376,200 308,400 281,337 27,063
207,000 207,000 42,536 164,464
1,120,000 742,000 725,412 16,588
393,000 393,000 225,020 167,980
11,644,200 8,617,425 7,181,078 1,436,347 \
1,857,336 138,371 1,973,165 1,834,794 _ l
1,950,000 1,950,000 — (1,950,000) '
(2,781,200) (2,402,771) (1,442,143) 960,628
(831,200) (452,771) (1,442,143) (989,372)
1,026,136 (314,400) 531,022 845,422
90446
: 621,468
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Subsidy Pass-Through Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual

Year ended June 30, 2004
Variance with
final budget —
Budgeted amourits Actual positive
Original Final amounts (negative)
Revenues:
Federal funds b 23,784,262 23,784,262 27,854,260 4,069,998
State funds 468,000 468,000 — (468,000)
Local Transportation Development Act funds 29,467,489 29,607,870 29,620,165 12,295
City of San Diego : 428918 428,918 278,000 (150,918)
State Transportation Assistance funds 4,776,412 4,776,412 4,437,008 (339,404)
Other funds 2,097,883 © 2,092,883 692,340 (1,400,543)
Interest income — — 169,506 169,506
Total revenues 61,022,964 61,158,345 63,051,279 1,892,934
Expenditures:
Current:
Transit support activities —_ — 45,844 (45,844)
Transit operations funding 73,493,179 73,488,179 76,521,882 (3,033,703)
Total expenditures 73,493,179 73,488,179 76,567,726 (3,079,547)
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (12,470,215) (12,329,834) (13,516,447) (1,186,613)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in : 2,781,200 2,781,200 9,186,482 6,405,282
Transfers out v (7,450,000) (7,450,000) (6,711,064) 738,936
Total other financing sources and uses (4,668,800) (4,668,300) 2,475,418 7,144 218
Net change in fund balances $ (17,139,015) (16,998,634) (11,041,029) 5,957,605
Fund balances, beginning 30,044,689
Fund balances, ending $ 19,003,660

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
TransNet Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual
Year ended June 30, 2004

Variance with

final budget —
Budgeted amounts Actual positive
Original Final amounts (negative)
Revenues:
TransNet funds ~$ 119,184,000 104,998,000 74,979,244 (30,018,756)
Other financing sources (uses): _
Transfers out (119,184,000) (104,998,000) (63,187,435) 41,810,565
Net change in fund balances $ — — 11,791,809 11,791,809
Fund balances, beginning 12,051,058
Fund balances, ending 3 23,842,867

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
MTS public support funds receivable
Accounts and other receivables
Accounts receivable from other governments
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Cash and cash equivalents restricted for capital support

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Retentions payable
Due to other funds

Compensated absences payable, current portion
Outstanding fare tokens and tickets

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims, current portion

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable, net of current portion —

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims, net of

current portion
Capital support funds

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004
B type Activities—Enterprisc Funds
Other San Diego San Diego
contracted Transit Trolley
services Corporation Incorporated Non-major Totals
3 — 842,962 140,308 15,872 999,142
— 3,720,656 543,751 720 4,265,127
3,162,021 — — 8,715 3,170,736
(684,692) —_ — — (684,692)
6,709,103 173,633 338,603 308,907 7,530,246
— 2,062,298 5,210,611 — 7,272,909
— 759,468 628,068 73,369 1,460,905
9,186,432 7,559,017 6,861,341 407,583 24,014,373
— 8,637 — — 8,637
36,695,955 67,569,871 587,355,912 474,663 692,096,401
36,695,955 67,569,871 587,355,912 474,663 692,096,401
45,882,387 75,137,525 594,217,253, 882,246 716,119,411
7,355,049 491,251 3,891,691 25,870 11,763,861
— 2,418,297 2,534,742 — 4,953,039
10,000 = — — 10,000
3,483 670,107 684,788 40,487 1,398,865
— 3,810,791 41,275 — 3,852,066
— 632,437 — — 632,437
— 4,250,234 3,020,096 — 7,270,330
1,699,125 — — — 1,699,125
9,067,657 12,273,117 10,172,592 66,357 31,579,723
5,599,327 1,837,081 — 7,436,408
— 9,628,674 1,123,904 — 10,752,578
— 8,637 — — 8,637
— 15,236,638 2,960,985 — 18,197,623
9,067,657 27,509,755 13,133,577 66,357 49,771,346
36,695,955 67,569,871 587,355,912 474,663 692,096,401
118,775 (19,942,101) (6,272,236) 341,226 (25,754,336)
$ 36,814,730 47,627,770 581,083,676 815,889 666,342,065
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM : ‘

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2004 o k
k!
Business-type Activities—Enterprise Funds
Other San Diego San Diego
contracted Transit Trolley ;
Assets services Corporation Incerporated Nonmajor Totals i
Operating revenues:
Passenger revenue $ 17,171,945 22,500,658 24,196,943 — 63,869,546
Permits and other fees 2,686 — 963,569 966,255 ey
Advertising — 674,562 — 139,787 814,349 o
Charter : — 58,770 — — 58,770 o
Total operating revenues 17,174,631 23,233,990 24,196,943 1,103,356 65,708,920

Operating expenses: ' 5
Operators” wages and other transportation expenses — 41,012,263 32,632,940 — 73,645,203 o
Contracted services 49,325,795 —_ — 49,325,795
Pension costs — 6,017,793 — — 6,017,793
Maintenance — 15,670,783 7,384,933 — 23,055,716
General and administrative expenses — 12,825,217 3,697,273 — 16,522,490
Depreciation 4,186,574 7,729,829 31,655,405 21,373 43,593,181 o
Administration 799,280 — — 808,536 1,607,816 }

Total operating expenses 54,311,649 83,255,885 : 75,370,551 829,909 213,767,994 .
Operating income (loss) (37,137,018) (60,021,895) (51,173,608) 273,447 (148,059,074)
Public support and nonoperating revenues: N
Local transportation fund 30,250,810 16,764,272 8,182,427 — 55,197,509 |
Federal funds 584,262 14,400,000 8,800,000 — 23,784,262 C
Other local support 1,282,784 13,235,130 362,212 — 14,880,126
State funds 339,404 3,864,884 500,588 — 4,704,876
Miscellaneous — 94,899 257,000 — 351,899
Investment income — 45,677 — 51 45,728 ;
Loss on disposal of assets — (5,586,880) — — (5,586,880) et
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 32,457,260 42.817,982 18,102,227 51 93,377,520

Net income (loss) before operating transfers

and contribution of property and equipment (4,679,758) (17,203,913) (33,071,381) 273,498 (54,681,554)

i

Capital contributions of property and equipment 363,954 112,776 3,089,182 — 3,565,912 ’
Transfers in 493,000 — — 32,560 525,560
Change in net assets (3,822,804) (17,091,137) (29,982,199) 306,058 (50,590,082)

Total net assets, beginning of year as restated (see note 1(a)) 40,637,534 64,718,907 611,065,875 509,831 716,932,147 i
Total net assets, end of year $ 36,814,730 47,627,770 581,083,676 815,889 666,342,065

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2004
Busi type Activities—Enterprise Funds
Other San Diego San Diego
contracted Transit Trolley
services Corporation Incorporated Nonmajor Totals
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users . $ 15,710,245 21,882,187 24,217,856 762,687 62,572,975
Payments to suppliers (48,660,505) (16,613,797) (20,663,585) (802,659) (86,740,546)
Payments to employees - — (46,850,120) (21,340,268) — (68,190,388)
Payments for damage, injury, and employee claim: — (8,101,311) — — (8,101,311
Net cash used in operating activities (32,950,260) (49,683,041) (17,785,997) (39,972) (100,459,270)
ot Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
T Interest income — 45,677 — 51 45,728
o ! Transfers 493,000 — — — 493,000
i Public support funds received 32,457,260 49,760,871 17,926,305 32,560 100,176,996
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 32,950,260 49,806,548 17,926,305 32,611 100,715,724
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Decrease in work in progress — 4,486 — — 4,486
Payments made through capital support func — (6,000) — - (6,000)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities — (1,514) — (1,514)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents — 121,993 140,308 (7.361) 254,940
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year — 729,606 — 23,233 752,839
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ — 851,599 140,308 15,872 1,007,779
Operating income (loss) $ (37,137,018) (60,021,895) (51,173,608) 273,448 (148,059,073)
’ } Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) tc
! net cash provided by operating activities:
' Depreciation 4,186,574 7,729,829 31,655,405 21,373 43,593,181
(Increase) decrease in: .
Accounts and other receivables — (1,500,537 20,913 — (1,479,624)
ey Accounts receivable from other
\ governmental entities (1,781,659) — — (2,772) (1,784,431)
Due from other funds (1,661,758) — — (257,120) (1,918,878)
Due from component units — — — — —
Materials and supplies inventory — (28,509) (333,951) — (362,460)
e Prepaid expenses — 414,029 389,484 (73,369) 730,144
Increase (decrease) in:
: Accounts payable 1,464,570 452,697 (1,552,911) (1.532) 362,824
Bid Accrued expenses — (236,501) 1,800,904 . — 1,564,403
Compensated absences payable 4,356,385 65,761 —_ 4,422,146
Qutstanding fare tokens and tickets — 148,735 —_ — 148,735
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claimt — (997,274) 1,342,006 — 344,732
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable 684,692 — — — 684,692
Deferred revenue 1,294,339 — — — 1,294,339
Total adjustments : 4,186,758 10,338,854 33,387,611 (313,420) 47,599,803
: Net cash used in operating activities 3 (32,950,260) (49,683,041) (17,785,997) (39,972) (100,459,270)
{ Supplemental noncash disclosures:

During the year, $112,776 and 33,089,182 in capital assets were contributed by the government fund:
and the San Diego County Transit System to San Diego Transit Corporaton and San Diego Trolley, Inc, respectively

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2004

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant of MTS’ accounting policies are described below.

(@)

Reporting Entity

MTS was formed on January 26, 1976 by passage of California Senate Bill 101 to plan, construct,
and operate (or let contracts to operate) exclusive public mass transit guideways in the urbanized
south coastal area of San Diego County. MTS has certain responsibilities for near-term
transportation planning and administration of federal and state transportation funds within the area
under its jurisdiction. The board of directors of MTS consists of 15 members composed of four
appointees from the San Diego City Council, one appointee from each City Council of Chula Vista,
Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee,
one appointee from the San Diego County Board of Supervisors, and a chairman elected by the other
14 members.

On January 1, 2003, Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) became effective. SB 1703 required the
consolidation of the planning and programming functions of the MTS and the North San Diego
County Transit Development Board (NCTD) into the San Diego Association of Governments
(SANDAG) in an initial transfer to take place prior to July 1, 2003. SB 1703 also required the
consolidation of the project development and construction functions of MTS and NCTD into
SANDAG in a subsequent transfer to take place prior to January 30, 2004. The initial transfer
occurred on July 1, 2003, and the subsequent transfer occurred on October 13, 2003. With these
actions, employees were transferred from MTS and NCTD to SANDAG, and certain planning,
development, and construction functions were also transferred. As a result, MTS’ activities in the
future will be focused on operating the public transit system in the metropolitan area. In addition to
the consolidation required by SB 1703, MTS dissolved the board of directors of San Diego Transit
Corporation (SDTC) and board of directors of San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI). MTS now acts in that
capacity for all three agencies, MTS, SDTC, and SDTL In FY 2004, SDTC and SDTI are presented
as blended component units. The beginning business-type activities net assets as of June 30, 2003
have been restated as follows:

Balance at June 30, 2003, as previously reported 5 40,638,271
Balance of discretely presented component units at June 30, 2003 676,293,876
Balance at June 30, 2003, as restated $ 716,932,147

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present MTS and its component units, entities for
which MTS is considered to be financially accountable. MTS presents blended component units.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of MTS’
operations.
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Included within the reporting entity as blended component units:

San Diego Transit Corporation: On July 1, 1985, MTS purchased the assets used by and acquired
sole ownership of San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) from the City of San Diego for §1. SDTC
is a California not-for-profit corporation. SDTC has entered into an operating agreement with MTS
to operate a public transportation bus system in the City of San Diego and certain regional routes
within MTS’ jurisdictions. The agreement extends through June 30, 2005. MTS has the option to
extend this agreement if exercised prior to the termination date. SDTC continues to provide local
service to a number of adjoining cities under pre-existing contracts. Purchases or construction of bus
capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains, and are contributed to SDTC upon
completion of a project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTC’s assets, liabilities, net
assets, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’ financial statements as a blended component
unit. This agency has the same governing board as MTS and provides services directly to the public.
Individual financial statements can be obtained from SDTC’s administrative offices at 100 Sixteenth
Street, P.O. Box 122511, San Diego, CA 92101-2511.

San Diego Trolley, Inc.: San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) is a California not-for-profit corporation
organized by MTS in August 1980. SDTI was created to operate and maintain the Light Rail Transit
(LRT) system pursuant to an operating agreement with MTS. The agreement extends through
June 30, 2005. MTS has the option to extend this agreement if exercised prior to the termination
date. Purchases or construction of LRT capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains, and
are contributed to SDTI upon completion of a project or when individually purchased by MTS.
SDTI’s assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’ financial
statements as a blended component unit. This agency has the same governing board as MTS and
provides services directly to the public. Individual financial statements can be obtained from SDTI’s
administrative offices at 1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 900, San Diego, CA 92101.

San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company: MTS purchased the San Diego and Arizona
Eastern Railway Company (SD&AE) in 1979. SDTI operates on a portion of the line and a private
operator provides freight service on a portion of the line. Purchases of capital items are made by
MTS with whom title remains, and are contributed to SD&AE when purchased by MTS. SD&AE’s
assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’ financial statements as a

blended component unit. This agency has a separate governing board, which is appointed by MTS.
Separate financial statements are not available.

Governmentwide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmentwide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component
units. Interfund activity, except for transfers and interfund receivables and payables, has been
removed from these statements Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a
significant extent, on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
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who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The governmentwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the

timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within one
year at the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual and so has
been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by MTS.

MTS receives funding primarily from the following revenue sources:

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) revenues are funded by a federal gas tax and revenues
of the federal general fund. MTS receives Sections 5309 and 5307 grants which are earmarked
for capital assistance and preventive maintenance. '

State funding is received primarily from the Traffic Congestion Relief Program (TCRP), State
Transit Assistance (STA) revenues, and the Transportation Enhancement Activities Program
(TEAP). STA funds come from the Public Transportation Account, which derives its revenues

from the state sales tax on gasoline. TCRP and TEAP funds are derived from the federal
general fund. '

Transportation Development Act (TDA) revenues provide funding support for public transit
operators and for nonmotorized transportation projects. The revenue comes from one-quarter
of a percent of the total 7.75% sales tax assessed in the region. San Diego Association of

Governments (SANDAG) is the agency responsible for apportionment of these funds within
the San Diego region.
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TransNet funds are derived from the Proposition A one-half cent local transportation sales tax,
which was approved by area voters in November 1987. The resulting ordinance allocated
one third of the sales tax proceeds for transit purposes, which are further divided between
MTS and North County Transit District based on the proportion of the population within the
area of each jurisdiction. TransNet funds are also apportioned by SANDAG.

MTS reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is MTS’ primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues
are primarily derived from FTA and local TDA funds. Expenditures are primarily expended
for functions of the general government, transit planning, and transit support activities
including marketing.

The special revenue Subsidy Pass-Through Fund accounts for the activities and the subsidy
resources collected on behalf of and passed through to the component units. This fund also
accounts for the fund balance reserves maintained for capital replacement and other purposes.
Revenues are primarily derived from FTA, STA, and local TDA funds. Expenditures are

primarily these federal, state, and local funds being passed through to component units and
other transit operators. :

The special revenue TransNet Fund accounts for the activities and resources received pursuant
to the one-half cent local sales tax. These revenues are transferred to other funds, which are
expended for rail capital, reduced-price monthly transit passes for seniors, the disabled, and
youth, and subsidizing any reduction in federal and state operating funds. Remaining moneys
can be expended for service expansion and extensions.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the resources and the activities of MTS to provide for
Light Rail Transit (LRT) extensions, major LRT/bus capital improvements, and operations
capital/replacement. Revenues are primarily derived from FTA and state capital grants and
other local income for transit capital funding. Expenditures are expended for capital outlay
including LRT extensions, major LRT capital improvements, major bus capital improvements,
and operations capital.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on the long-term general obligation debt of MTS. Revenues are derived
from interest earned on the restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments accumulated for
the payment of the debt service. Expenditures are payments for the debt service.

MTS reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Other Contracted Services Fund is an enterprise fund used to account for the operation of
certain bus routes that have been competitively bid and are operated by MTS through contracts
with outside parties. Revenues are primarily derived from passenger fare revenue and federal,
state, and local operating grants. Expenses are primarily payments to contracted bus operators
for the operation of certain bus routes. Effective July 1, 2002, the responsibility for operating
the County Transit System (CTS) was transferred from the County of San Diego to MTS.
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SDTI and SDTC are not-for-profit corporations that provide bus and LRT services. These
agencies share governing boards with MTS and are, therefore, presented as blended
component units in the Business-type activities section of the Statement of Net Assets and the
‘Statement of Activities.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Govemments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmentwide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are lending/borrowing of pooled cash between
the proprietary funds and various other functions of the government. Elimination of this
lending/borrowing would distort the assets for governmental activities and business-type activities in
the statement of net assets.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds, which are
used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business or where MTS has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred, and/or
net income is necessary for management accountability.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of SDTL, SDTC, and Other Contract Services Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for
public transportation services. The principal operating revenues of the Taxicab Administration
Enterprise Fund are charges for the issuance of taxi and jitney service permits. The principal
operating revenues for SD&AE are lease income and right-of-entry permit fees. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is MTS’ policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Budgets

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental fund types. All annual appropriations
Japse at year end. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting consistent with
GAAP.
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Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is

utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances lapse at year end and may be reappropriated in the
following year.

Deposits and Investments

Investments of pooled cash consist primarily of bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, pooled
investment funds, liquidity funds, governmental -bonds, and commercial paper. Investments are
stated at fair value which is based on quoted market price. Interest income earned as a result of
investing is distributed to the appropriate funds using a formula based on the average investment
balance of each fund. Money market investments and participating interest earning investment
contracts that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid temporary investments purchased with
a maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that.are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year is referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmentwide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Parts and Supplies Inventories

Component unit inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (spare LRT parts) and the
lower of average cost or market (materials and supplies for buses), using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory contributed by MTS to SDTI is recorded at MTS’ cost. The costs of governmental
fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2004 are recorded
as prepaid items in both governmentwide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land and right-of-way, buildings and infrastructure assets, vehicles, and
equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or matenally
extend the asset’s life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
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recorded as expenditures of the governmental funds and as assets in the governmentwide financial
statements. Legal title of all SDTC property and equipment was transferred from the City of San
Diego to MTS effective with MTS’ purchase of SDTC on July 1, 1985. SDTC has recorded these
assets at net book value in order to reflect SDTC’s custodial accountability for the assets. Legal title
of all County Transit System (CTS) property and equipment was transferred from the County of San
Diego to MTS effective with MTS’s acquisition of CTS on July 1, 2002. MTS has recorded these
assets at net book value.

Under the operating agreements between MTS and SDTC and SDTI, SDTC and SDTI are required
to pay a license fee to MTS for the use of certain fixed assets. Due to SDTC’s and SDTI’s continued
shortage of operating funds sufficient to cover recurring expenditures, the payment of these fees is
considered remote, and therefore, these amounts were not recorded in the accompanying financial
statements.

Buildings, vehicles, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 32
Vehicles 5to 30
Equipment 3t020

Construction in Progress

Costs incurred for construction associated with the LRT system are expended in the governmental
fund types of MTS and capitalized as construction in progress in the governmentwide financial
statements until such time as they are complete and operational. Upon completion, they are
contributed to SDTI to reflect SDTI’s custodial accountability for the assets. Depreciation
commences at the time of contribution. Assets acquired through capital leases are capitalized in the
governmentwide financial statements.

Compensated Absences

It is MTS’ policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since MTS does not have a policy to
pay any amounts when employees separate from service with MTS. All vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the governmentwide and proprietary fund type financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured.

Long-term Obligations

In the governmentwide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements,
Jong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable statement
of net assets. Debt premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the debt using the straight-line method. Debt payable is reported net of the applicable
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bond premium or discount. Debt issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over
the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and discounts, as
well as debt issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on.debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative plans for future use of financial

resources.

Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings of debt of the governmental funds have been
deferred and are being amortized into expense using the straight-line method over the original
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is less.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Legal Compliance — Budgets

The following are MTS’ procedures in establishing the annual budget:

1.

In June of each year, the Director of Finance and Administration submits to the board of directors a
proposed operating and capital projects budget for the following fiscal year.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain comments.

The budget is legally enacted through passagé of a resolution.
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The General Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts up to $25,000 between line items without

_ prior board approval. However, all increases in the authorized budget and transfers of budgeted amounts

greater than $25,000 must be approved in advance by MTS’ board. Expenditures may not exceed budgeted
appropriations at the line item level which are detailed by object (i.e., personnel, insurance, rent, etc.).
MTS made supplemental budget appropriations during the year as follows:

General Fund $  (3,026,775)
Subsidy Pass-Through Special Revenue
Fund (5,000)

Reconciliation of Governmentwide and Fund Financial Statements

(a)  Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Governmentwide Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the governmentwide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “other long-term assets are
not available to pay for current-period expenditures. and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.” The
details of this $1,255,528 difference are as follows:

Prepaid interest $ 350,181
Deferred issuance costs 905,347

Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets — governmental activities $ 1,255,528

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including debt payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of
this $(204,082,706) difference are as follows:

Compensated absences payable $ (340,407)
Claims payable (2,716,203)
Long-term debt (200,247,734)
Accrued interest payable (166,860)
Premium of debt payable (611,502)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets — governmental activities $ (204,082,706)

(b)  Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Governmentwide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the governmentwide statement of activities. One
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element of that reconciliation explains that, “governmental funds report capital outlays as i
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. In the current year, $16.8 million paid to

fund capital projects in progress owned by SANDAG was reported as an expense.” The details of
this $63,672,578 difference are as follows:

Transit capital funding expense ' $ 149,752,205 }

Contributed capital 128,357 :

Less: n
Current year payments for SANDAG projects (16,764,717) 2
Construction in progress transferred to SANDAG (68,883,427) 4
Depreciation expense _ (559,840)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — total . N
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets — !
governmental activities $ 63,672,578

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither o
- transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of -
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these

amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $(25,945,075) i
difference are as follows:

Interest expense $ 315,920
Principal repayment 6,155,682
Amortization expense — deferred issuance costs ' (130,551)
Issuance of debt (32,850,000)
Debt issuance costs 563,873
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets — governmental activities : $  (25,945,076)

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $597,404 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $ 403,081
Claims 194,323
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets — governmental activities 5 597,404
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Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

To facilitate optimum management of MTS’ resources, cash resources of the individual funds are
combined to form a pool of cash for short-term investment, except for restricted funds which are generally
held by outside custodians on behalf of Capital Projects and Enterprise Funds.

Deposits with Financial Institutions: At June 30, 2004, the primary government had deposits in
financial institutions with a bank balance and a carrying amount of $10,096,591 and $8,178,295,
respectively, of which $100,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining
uninsured deposits are with financial institutions which are individually legally required to have
government deposits collateralized with government securities held by the pledging financial
institution’s trust department in the government’s name. The market value of such pledged securities
must equal at least 110% of the government’s deposits. The difference between the carrying amount
and the bank balance represents items in transit in the normal course of business. MTS has not
experienced any losses to date on its deposits with financial institutions.

Bank Investment Contracts: During the year ended June 30, 1996, MTS entered into a bank
investment contract which bears interest at a fixed rate. The bank investment contract is a component
of the 1995 LRV lease/leaseback finance obligation described more fully in note 7. The earnings and
the principal of the bank investment contract will be used to make the debt service payments on the
related finance obligation. The value of the bank investment contract as of Tune 30, 2004 was
$90,568,409, which is not covered by federal depository insurance.

Investments: The primary government is responsible for investing its temporary surplus cash in
accordance with the written investment policy which is consistent with the California Government
Code 53600. Within the context of these limitations, permissible investments include:

1. Securities of the U.S. government
2. Small Business Administration loans

3. Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or savings and loans with FDIC,
Security Investment Protection Corporation (SIPC), or Savings Association Insurance Fund
(SAIF) insurance, or with full collateralization

4. Nonnegotiable time deposits issued by banks or savings and loans which meet the
requirements for investment in negotiable certificates of deposit

5.  Bankers’ acceptances

6.  Commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard and Poor’s Corporation or P1 by Moody’s Investor
Services, Inc.

7. Repurchase agreements with banks and other board-evaluated parties
8.  Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer

9. San Diego County Pooled Money Fund
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10.  Prudential Bache Liquidity Fund

11. Passbook savings or money market demand deposits with an FDIC, SIPC, or SAIF insured

financial institution.

The investments that are represented by specific identifiable investment securities are classified as to

credit risk by the three categories described below:

Category 1: Insured or registered, with securities held by MTS or its agent, in MTS’ name.

Category 2: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust

department or agent, in MTS’ name.

Category 3: Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust

department or agent, but not in MTS’ name.

Following are the cash, cash equivalents, and investments held by the primary government at

June 30, 2004, classified by category of risk.

Not required Carrying

Category . to be amount at

1 2 3 categorized fair value

Local Agency Investment Fund $ — — — 1,474,874 1,474,874

Deposits with financial institutions 8,178,295 8,178,295

Other cash fund (imprest, revolving) 200 200

Highmark Money Market — — — 24,239 24,239

Money market — —_— — 12,441,680 12,441,680

Money market (Retention Trust) — — — 13,092,724 13,092,724

Bank Investment Contract . — — — 90,568,409 90,568,409

Corporate notes 4,429,088 —_ — — 4,429,088

U.S. Treasury notes 7,995,057 — — — 7,995,057

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 8,179,268 — — — 8,179,268
Federal National Mortgage

Association 6,826,107 —_ — — 6,826,107

Federal Home Loan Bank 7,927,446 — — — 7,927,446

U.S. Treasury strips 22,737,835 — — — 22,737,835

Refco Zero Coupon Bonds 14,596,315 — —_ — 14,596,315

Total cash and
investments $ 72,691,116 — — 125,780,421 198,471,537

Monies invested in derivatives through the State Pool are considered immaterial..

54

(Continued)




9:>’ SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT BOARD
- Notes to Financial Statements

;;f:ii June 30, 2004

(5) Capital Assets

Primary Government

A summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities is as follows:

e Balance, Balance,
ﬁ June 30, 2003 Additions Deletions June 30, 2004
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and right-of-way $ 21,957,196 — — 21,957,196
Construction-in-progress 379,191,180 135,661,639 (68,883,427) 445,969,392
: Total capital assets, '
r] not being depreciated 401,148,376 135,661,639 (68,883,427) 467,926,588
b
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Y Buildings and structures 13,387,570 — — 13,387,570
E } Vehicles 229,003 — — 229,003
o Office equipment and furniture 1,176,520 128,356 — 1,304,876
S Total capital assets,
g being depreciated 14,793,093 128,356 — 14,921,449
. Less accumulated depreciation for:
J Buildings and structures (5,634,920) (418,429) — (6,053,349)
L Vehicles (126,744) (39,795) — (166,539)
Office equipment and furniture (984,058) (101,616) — (1,085,674)
{ Total accumulated
bis depreciation (6,745,722) (559,840) — (7,305,562)
A Total capital assets,
{ being depreciated, net 8,047,371 (431,484) — 7,615,887
Governmental activities
{ ~ capital assets, net $ 409,195,747 135,230,155 (68,883,427) 475,542,475

JERt

Construction projects in progress totaling $68.8 million were transferred to SANDAG during 2004
pursuant to the terms of SB 1703 (see note 16 in the accompanying notes to the financial statements).
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A summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities is as follows:

Balance, A
6/30/2003, Restatement Balance, : xi
as previously adjustments  June 30, 2003, Balance, o
stated (note 1(a)) as restated Additions Deletions June 30, 2004
Capital assets not being depreciated: v !
Land and right-of-way 3 809,692 166,244,788 167,054,480 — — 167,054,480 .
Construction in progress — 4,486 4,486 — (4,486) — '
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures 5,061,626 626,286,769 631,348,395 2,140,813 (954,513) 632,534,695 .
Vehicles and buses 49,877,986 289,278,799 339,156,785 575,242 (25,942,693) 313,789,334 Ty
Equipment and other 760,860 25,999,900 26,760,760 849,856 (4,367,857) 23,242,759 '
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 55,700,472 941,565,468 997,265,940 3,565,911 (31,265,063) 969,566,788
Less accurmnulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures (1,413,755)  (266,520,207)  (267,933,962) (25,663,463) 919,074  (292,678,351)
Vehicles and buses (14,115,787)  (122,864,952)  (136,980,739) (16,923,294) 20,517,553 (133,386,480)
Equipment and other (456,425) (21,238,743)  (21,695,168) (1,006,424) 4,241,556 (18,460,036)
Total accumulated
depreciation (15,985,967)  (410,623,902)  (426,609,869) (43,593,181) 25,678,183 (444,524,867)
Total capital
assets, being B
depreciated, net 39,714,505 530,941,566 570,656,071 (40,027,270) (5,586,880) 525,041,921
Business-type
activities — capital
assets, net $ 40,524,197 697,190,840 737,715,037 (40,027,270) (5,591,366) 692,096,401

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 559,840
Business-type activities: .

Other contracted services $ 4,186,574

Taxicab administration 1,874

SDTC 7,729,829

SDTI ' 31,655,405

SD&AE 19,499

Total depreciation expense —
business-type activities $ 43,593,181

56 (Continued)



RSN

J

I

§

——— i

e

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2004

Construction Commitments

Construction in progress is comprised of the following at June 30, 2004:

Expended
through Contractually

June 30, 2004 committed

Mission Valley East $ 413,938,978 60,115,427
San Ysidro Intermodal Transit Center 23,213,544 1,791,655
Orange Line-Blue Line Connection 849,466 54,655
12th and Market Station Retrofit 7,892,372 1,103,725
12th Avenue Corridor Improvements 75,032 —
Total construction in progress $ 445,969,392 63,065,462

Risk Management

MTS (including SDTI, SDTC, SD&AE, Taxicab Administration and Other Contracted Services) is
self-insured for liability claims under a combined insurance program to a maximum of $2,000,000 per
occurrence. Amounts in excess of the self-insurance retention limits for public liability are covered by
excess insurance by MTS through commercial insurance carriers up to $75,000,000. MTS, SDTI, and
SDTC purchase all-risk (excluding quake) insurance coverage for property damage up to $400,000,000 per
occurrence with deductibles ranging from $25,000 to $50,000, depending on the peril involved. In
addition, MTS, SDTC, and SDTI are self-insured for costs arising from employee workers’ compensation
claims, employee practices liability, and public official errors and omissions liability to a maximum of
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of $1,000,000 are covered by insurance companies up to
$75,000,000. SDTC and MTS are self-insured for unemployment claims. SDTC and SDTI have policies
for crime coverage through commercial insurance.

Claims expenditures and liabilities in connection with these self-insurance programs are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses
include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported based upon past experience,

modified for current trends and information. Claim payments did not exceed insurance coverage in any of
the past three years.

Current year

claims and End of
Beginning of changes in Claim fiscal year

Fiscal year fiscal year estimates payments liability

MTS:
2002 - 2003 $ 17,226,338 3,456,054 (6,797,187) 13,885,205
2003 — 2004 13,885,205 9,050,404 (4,870,648) 18,064,961
$ 31,111,543 12,506,458 (11,667,835) 31,950,166
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At June 30, 2004, General Fund investments of $244,996 were held for purposes of funding the future
claims liabilities of MTS, SDTI, and SDTC. As a result, $244,996 of the General Fund balance is
designated for payment of future claims liabilities.

Notes Payable

During the year, MTS issued revenue anticipation notes for operating cash flow needs. The notes are
general obligations of MTS and are payable from taxes, cash receipts, and other moneys of MTS. The

notes pay interest at 2.0% and are due January 1, 2005. Short-term activity for the year ended June 30,
2004 is summarized below.

Beginning _ Ending
balance Proceeds Repayment balance
Revenue anticipation notes $ — 20,000,000 — 20,000,000

Long-term Debt
(a) Capital Leases

The County of San Diego (the County) has a master lease agreement with the MTS Joint Powers
Agency (Agency) for the lease of the MTS Tower building. MTS entered into a sublease agreement
with the County for a portion (27.61%) of the MTS Tower building. The sublease is classified as a
capital lease because 27.61% of the title transfers to MTS at the end of the County’s master lease.
The master lease terminates on November 1, 2086; however, the County has the option to terminate
the agreement on November 1, 2041 and each tenth anniversary thereafter.

In December 1990, MTS entered into a lease agreement with the Agency for 130 replacement buses.
The lease was refinanced in February 2000 with the California Transit Finance Corporation (CTFC),
a nonprofit, public benefit corporation created by the California Transit Association to provide
assistance to transit entities in financing capital improvements. The lease is classified as a capital

lease because title transfers to MTS when the lease terminates in December 2004. The buses are
recorded by SDTC. '

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
activities activities
Building - MTS Tower $ 12,091,981 —
Less accumulated depreciation (5,857,053) —
Vehicles — buses — 28,112,330
Less accumulated depreciation — (21,225,759)
Total $ 6,234,928 6,886,571
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Following is a summary of future minimum payments under capital leases as of June 30, 2004:

Governmental
activities
Year ending June 30:

2005 1,862,449
2006 846,165
2007 847,778
2008 847,750
2009 847,005
20102014 4,230,802
2015-2019 4,221,643
20202024 844,376
Total minimum lease payments 14,547,968

Less amount representing interest (4,201,612)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3 10,346,356

Finance Obligations

1990 LRV Sale/Leaseback — In fiscal year 1990, MTS entered into an agreement to sell 41 light rail
vehicles (LRVs) and simultaneously entered into a lease agreement with the purchaser to lease them
back. MTS received proceeds of approximately $52.3 million, of which it used approximately
$46.4 million to prepay future lease payments. This prepayment amount covers lease payments
through the year 2004 and into 2005. MTS invested $3,680,449 of the proceeds into government
zero coupon bonds. These bonds mature at values sufficient to cover all remaining lease payments
due under the lease agreement as well as amounts necessary to exercise the repurchase options. On
June 30, 1990, MTS exercised its option to repurchase the vehicles. As of June 30, 2004, the
remaining future obligations total $15,878,727.

Principal Interest
2005 $ : — —
2006 — —
2007 2,703,929 —
2008 ‘ 9,351,404 —
2009 3,823,394 —
’ $ 15,878,727 —

1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback — In fiscal year 1996, MTS entered into a master lease to lease 52 light
rail vehicles to an investor and then simultaneously entered into a sublease agreement to lease them
back. MTS received prepayments of the master lease from the investor of approximately
$102.7 million, of which it used approximately $90.7 million to place two investments which will be
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used to make the interest and principal payments on the finance obligation. MTS placed
$78.8 million in a fixed rate deposit and invested $11.9 million in government zero coupon bonds.
The interest earned on the deposit, together with the principal amount of the deposit and the
maturities of the zero-coupon bonds, is sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance
obligation. As of June 30, 2004, the remaining future obligations total $126,702,651.

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:

2005 $ 927,889 6,672,734
2006 : 999,244 6,598,651
2007 1,076,086 6,518,871
2008 1,158,836 6,432,956
2009 1,247,951 6,340,434
2010-2014 7,835,643 30,045,260
2015-2019 57,412,147 25,866,428
2020-2024 43,105,910 14,211,017
20252026 12,938,945 604,846

5 126,702,651 103,291,197

For the above lease transactions, MTS is obligated to insure and maintain the equipment. The lease
agreements also provide for MTS’ right to continued use and control of the equipment. For the 1990
LRYV sale/leaseback and the 1995 LRV lease/leaseback, MTS also has agreed to indemnify the lessor
from any taxes imposed by the United States taxing authorities.

The LRVs acquired under the various finance obligations have been transferred to and are recorded
by SDTL : '

2002 San Diego Regional Transit Management System Project — In fiscal year 2003, MTS issued
$17,485,000 of Certificates of Participation (COP) for governmental activities through the California
Transit Finance Corporation for the purpose of financing a regional transit radio communications
project. The COPs pay interest at rates ranging from 2 to3% and mature on December 1, 2007. As of
June 30, 2004, the outstanding balance is $14,470,000.

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:
2005 $ 3,485,000 364,400
2006 3,555,000 276,225
2007 3,660,000 168,000
2008 3,770,000 56,550
$ 14,470,000 865,175
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2004 Regional Fare Collection Project — In fiscal year 2004, MTS issued $32,850,000 of COP for
governmental activities -through the California Transit Finance Corporation for the purpose of
financing a regional fare collection project. The COPs pay interest at rates ranging from 2 to 3.3 %
and mature on November 1, 2009. As of June 30, 2004, the outstanding balance 1s $32,850,000.

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30:

2005 : ' $ — 840,435

2006 6,785,000 772,585

2007 6,910,000 632,180

2008 6,545,000 477,813

2009 ' 6,710,000 295,350

2010-2014 5,900,000 97,350
$ 32,850,000 3,115,713

Following is a summary of all payments due under these finance obligations for the next five years
and thereafter:

g

1 .
e

Principal Interest
Year ending June 30: : :

2005 ' h) 4,412,889 7,877,569
2006 14,043,173 7,647,461
2007 20,997,490 7,319,051
2008 15,297,230 6,967,318
2009 7,957,951 6,635,784
2010-2014 13,735,643 30,142,610
2015-2019 57,412,147 25,866,428
20202024 43,105,910 14,211,017
2025-2026 12,938,945 604,846

189,901,378 107,272,084
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Changes in Long-term Obligations

Following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2004:

Reductions Amounts due
Balance at Additions and and net Balance at within
June 30,2003  net increases decreases June 30, 2004 one year
Governmental activities:
Debt payable:
" Capitalized lease
obligations $ 13,554,647 — (3,208,291) 10,346,356 1,406,238
Finance obligation 159,998,768 32,850,000 (2,947,390) 189,901,378 4,412,889
Deferred amounts :
for issuance premium 700,594 — (89,092) 611,502 —
Total debt
payable 174,254,009 32,850,000 (6,244,773) 200,859,236 5,819,127
Compensated absences
payable 743,488 —_ (403,081) 340,407 159,991
Claims payable 236,376 — (194,323) 42,053 42,053
Governmental
activities
long-term
obligations $ 175,233,873 32,850,000 (6,842,177) 201,241,696 6,021,171
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For the governmental activities, compensated absences are liquidated by the General Fund as

follows:
Additions Reductions Amounts due
Balance at and net and net Balance at within
June 30,2003  increases decreases  June 30, 2004 one year
Business-type activities:
San Diego Transit Corporation:
Compensated absences
payable $ 9,083,080 327,039 — 9,410,119 3,810,791
Claims payable 10,846,835 7,246,400 (4,214,327) 13,878,908 4,250,234
San Diego Transit
Corporation
long-term
obligations 19,929,915 7,573,439 (4,214,327) 23,289,027 8,061,025
~
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
Compensated absences
payable 1,812,595 65,761 — 1,878,356 41,275
Claims payable 2,801,994 1,892,126 (550,120) 4,144,000 3,020,096
San Diego Trolley, Inc.
long-term :
obligations 4,614,589 1,957,887 (550,120) 6,022,356 3,061,371
Business-type activities
long-term obligations § 24,544,504 9,531,326 (4,764,447) 29,311,383 11,122,396

(8) Interfund Transactions

MTS receives operating and capital assistance from federal, state, and local sources for the benefit of°
SDTI, SDTC, and Other Contracted services. These funds are recorded as revenue in a special revenue
fund and then reported as an expenditure when transferred to these entities. Interfund receivable and
payable balances, including amounts due from and to component units, at June 30, 2004 were as follows:

. Due from
Due to/from primary Subsidy Pass-  Capital Other
government and General Through Projects Contracted
component units Fund Fund Fund Services SDTC SDTI SD&AE Total
Due to:
General Fund 3 — — 13,729,723 — 670,107 391,578 — 14,791,408
Subsidy Pass-Through
Fund — — 4,525914 — — 293,210 — 4,819,124
TransNet — -— 44968331 — — — — 44968331
Contract Services — — 6,709,103 — — — — 6,709,103
Taxicab
Administration — — 308,907 — — — — 308,907
Debt Service — — 17,481,701 — — — 40,487 17,522,188
SDTC 31,838 141,277 — 518 — — — 173,633
SDTI 2,434 233,236 99,968 2,965 — — — 338,603
Total ) 34,272 374,513 87,823,647 3,483 670,107 684,788 40,487 89,631,297
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Contingencies

MTS, SDTC, and SDTI have been named in certain legal actions pending at June 30, 2004. Although the

~ outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management of MTS, SDTC,

and SDTI, based in part on the advice of counsel, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of MTS, SDTC, or SDTI or is
adequately covered by insurance.

Grant funds received by MTS are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies. Such audits
could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures. disallowed under the

terms of the grant. The management of MTS believes that such disallowances, if any, will not be
significant.

‘During 1986, MTS entered into an agreement with another company to sell the tax benefits related to six

trolley cars. Simultaneously, MTS entered into a lease agreement with the purchaser to lease the six trolley
cars. Certain terms of the agreement call for repayment to the purchaser/lessor if the tax consequences of
the agreement are lost or changed due to changes in the Internal Revenue Code. The amount of repayment
is essentially the portion of the proceeds relating to the tax benefits lost by the purchaser/lessor. The Tax
Reform Act of 1986 may cause an amount to be repaid to the purchaser/lessor. Such amount may range
from zero to approximately $1,294,000 and cannot be determined until MTS is notified of any repayment
due. No repayment has been requested to date.

Reserves

The reservations of fund balances of MTS’ governmental funds at June 30, 2004 consist of:

Reserved ‘Designated
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund:

Prepaid expenses $ 376,472 —
Insurance —_— 244,996

Subsidy Pass-Through Special Revenue Fund:
Contingency —_ 7,623,431
Billboard — San Diego — 257,156
Billboard — Chula Vista — 410,151
Land management — 257,000
SD&AE — 1,128,461
Disaster relief — 105,010
MTS Tower building — 494,019
Taxicab Administration capital replacement 31,093 —
TransNet Fund — 23,842,867
Capital Projects Fund prepaid expenses 563 —
$ 408,128 34,363,091
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Board policy requires a minimum funding level of $2,000,000 in the contingency reserve and $2,000,000 |
in the insurance reserve. When these reserves fall below the minimum funding level, Board policy requires
replenishment in the following budget cycle. ‘

(11) Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

(12)

In 1992, pursuant to requirements of the state retirement system in which MTS participates, MTS adopted
a policy to provide postretirement healthcare benefits to all retired employees through the California Public
Employees Retirement System. Contributions range from $123 to $230 monthly per employee, depending
upon the number of dependents insured, and increase at an annual rate of 5% of the monthly contribution
for active employees. The expenditure is recorded when paid. Total payments for the year ended June 30,
2004 were $12,258. There are six retirees currently receiving postemployment healthcare benefits.

Employee Retirement Systems

(a)

MTS and SDTI
Plan Description and Provisions

MTS and SDTI’s defined-benefit pension plans provide retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are part
of the Public Agency portion of the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. A menu of benefit
provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statutes within the Public Employees’
Retirement Law. MTS and SDTI select optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract
with PERS and adopt those benefits through local ordinance. Copies of the PERS annual financial
report may be obtained from the PERS Executive Office — 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Funding Policy

All employees working the equivalent of 1,000 hours per year are eligible to participate as members
of PERS. MTS and SDTI employees are ¢ligible to retire at age 50 with at least five years of service.
Annual retirement benefits are determined based on age at retirement, the length of membership
service, and the amount of earnings based on the highest 12 consecutive months average. PERS also
provides death and disability benefits. PERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report.

The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State statue and the employer
contribution rate is established and may be amended by PERS. MTS and SDTI employees are
required to make contributions equal to 7% of gross pay for employees who are not covered by
Social Security and 7% of gross pay after the first $133.33 per month for employees who pay Social
Security tax. MTS and SDTI are required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts
necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are
those adopted by the PERS Board of Administration. In 2003, MTS paid the entire employee
contribution for all employees, and SDTI paid the entire employee contribution for management and
supervisory employees who were hired before June 30, 1988. For management and supervisory
employees hired after June 30, 1988, SDTI paid half the employee contribution until their
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third anniversary, after which SDTI pays their full contribution. Prior to January 1, 1992, SDTI paid
half the employee contribution for nonmanagerial employees. As of January 1, 1992, the
nonmanagerial employees pay the entire contribution.

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2004, the MTS’ and SDTI’s annual required employer contributions were $0 and
$727,000, respectively. The required contribution for fiscal year 2004 was determined as part of the
June 30, 2004 actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method with the contributions
determined as a percent of pay. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.25% investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses); (b) projected salary increases from 3.75% to 14.2%
depending on age, service, and type of employment; (c) 3.75% payroll growth adjustment; (d) 3.5%
inflation adjustment; and (€) a merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an
assumed annual inflation component of 3.5% and an annual production growth of 0.25%. The
actuarial value of the assets of both plans was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect
of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a two-to five-year period depending
on the size of investment gains and/or losses. MTS’ and SDTI’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(or excess assets) is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at June 30, 2004 was 10 years for MTS and 4 years for SDTI.

Trend information for MTS (in 000s) is as follows:

Annual Percentage
pension of APC Net pension
cost (APC) contributed obligation
Fiscal year ended June 30:
2002 $ — 100% $ —
2003 — 100 —
2004 — 100 —_

Trend information for SDTI (in 000s) is as follows:

Annual Percentage
pension of APC Net pension
cost (APC) contributed obligation
Fiscal year ended June 30:
2002 $ 175 100% $ —
2003 398 100 ' —
2004 727 100 —
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SDTC
Plan Description

All of SDTC’s full-time employees and certain part-time noncontract employees who have
completed one year of service in which they have worked at least 1,000 hours of service, and certain
part-time contract employees participate in the San Diego Transit Corporation Employee Retirement
Plan (the Plan), a single-employer public employee retirement plan. SDTC issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information

for the Plan. The financial report may be obtained by writing to San Diego Transit Corporation, P.O.
Box 122511, San Diego, CA 92112-2511.

Funding Status and Progress

SDTC makes annual contributions equal to an actuarially computed amount that includes normal
cost and an amount for the amortization of unfunded accrued liabilities. Participants of the Plan are
not allowed to contribute to the Plan. The valuation method used to calculate the contribution for the
Plan is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which is a projected benefit cost method.

According to this cost method, the normal cost for an employee is the level amount which would
fund the projected benefit if it were paid annually from date of eligibility until retirement. The
significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution

requirements included (a) an actuarial interest rate (per annum) of 8.5% and (b) a projected salary
increase of 3.5% per year. '

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the annual pension cost of $6,017,793 for the pension plan was
equal to SDTC’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part
of the January 11, 2001 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The actuarial
assumptions 1ncluded (a) an 8.5% investment rate of return and (b) apro;ected salary increase of
3.5%. Following is the most recent data available.

Trend information for SDTC (in 000s):

Annual Percentage
pension of APC Net pension
cost (APC) contributed obligation
Fiscal year ended June 30:

- 2002 $ 3,068 100% § —
2003 3,670 100 —
2004 6,018 100 —
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(13) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures

SDTC and SDTI bad unrestricted net deficits of $19,942,101 and $6,272,236, respectively, at June 30, -
' 2004. The deficits are primarily a result of the timing difference between recognition of expenses on an B

accrual basis and when those expenses are funded by subsidy transfers. MTS expects that these deficits

will be funded with future subsidies. The capital Projects fund had an unrestricted net deficit of

‘$17,714,856, which is the result of timing differences between capital prOJect expenses and receipt of
subsidy funding for those projects.

(14) Transfers

MTS made certain transfers between funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. Following is the detail:

Subsidy i
Pass- :
General Through TransNet
Transfer description Fund Fund Fund Total
Subsidy Pass-Through Fund b3 406,482 — 8,780,000 9,186,482
Capital Projects Fund 216,400 — 53,914,435 54,130,835
Debt Service Fund 786,701 6,711,064 — 7,497,765
Total primary
government 1,409,583 6,711,064 62,694,435 70,815,082
Contracted Services Fund —_ -— 493,000 493,000
SD&AE 32,560 — — 32,560
Total business-type
activities 32,560 — 493,000 525,560
Net transfers $ 1442143 6,711,064 63,187,435 71,340,642
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Extraordinary Events
Equity (Deficit) Disposition Due to Senate Bill 1703

On January 1, 2003, Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) became effective. SB 1703 required the consolidation of
the planning and programming functions of MTS and NCTD into SANDAG in an initial transfer that took
place July 1, 2003. As of July 1, 2003, certain functions and their net assets were transferred to SANDAG

and their net assets (deficit) include the following at their carrying value, which approximated fair market
value:

Fund Assets Liabilities Net assets
Pass/ticket sales distribution $ 4,954242 4,641,746 312,496
Capital Projects Fund ' 7,811,406 15,698,358 (7,886,952)
Construction in progress 68,883,427 — 68,883,427
$ 81,649,075 20,340,104 61,308,971

Pass/ticket sales distribution function was transferred October 13, 2003. The entire year is reported in the
financial statements of SANDAG. The total net assets transferred were $312,496.

The project development and construction functions were transferred October 13, 2003. The entire year of

activity is reported in the financial statements of SANDAG. The total net deficit transferred was
$(7,886,952).

Construction projects in progress as of June 30, 2003, totaling $68,883,427, were transferred to SANDAG.
As these projects are completed, they will be recorded at fair value as contributed capital to MTS.

Subsequent Events

On October 26, 2004, MTS issued certain Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds (Bonds) in the amount of
$77,490,000, on behalf of SDTC, to reduce an unfunded actuarial liability to SDTC’s pension plan. The
obligation of MTS to make payments with respect to the Bonds under a Trust Agreement is an
unconditional obligation of MTS and is an obligation imposed by law. The Bonds are payable from any

and all legally available funds of MTS. The Bonds pay interest at rates ranging from 2.58% to 4.35% and
mature in 2033.
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(In thousands)
MTS
Entry age Unfunded
normal Actuarial liability Annual
accrued value (excess Funded covered UAAL as a
Valuation date liability of assets assets) status payroll % of payroll
6/30/02 $ 16,455 15,403 1,052 93.6% § 5,082 20.7%
6/30/03 Not available for individual plan — — — — — —_ 7
6/30/04 Not available for individual plan — — — — — — R
SDTI
Entry age Unfunded
normal Actuarial liability Annual
accrued value (excess Funded covered UAAL as a
Valuation date liability of assets assets) status payroll % of payroll
6/30/02 . $ 31,006 30,711 295 99.0% $ 16,532 1.8%
6/30/03 37,235 32,694 4,541 87.8 16,827 27.0 -
6/30/04 41,695 35,905 5,790 86.1 17,749 326 o
' !
SDTC
Entry age Unfunded
normal Actuarial liability Annual
accrued value (excess Funded covered UAAL as a
Valuation date liability of assets assets) status payroll % of payroll
6/30/02 . 3 119,778 74,860 44,918 625% §$ 38,246 117.4%
6/30/03 125,584 56,331 69,253 449 34,945 198.2
6/30/04 132,307 78,667 53,640 59.5 36,237 148.0

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules by Source

June 30, 2004 and 2003
2004 2003
Governmental funds capital assets:
Land and right-of-way ' ' $ 21,957,196 21,957,196
Construction-in-progress ) 445,969,392 379,191,180
Buildings and structures 13,387,570 13,387,570
Vehicles 229,003 229,003
Office equipment and furniture ' 1,304,876 1,176,520
482,848,037 415,941,469
Less accumulated depreciation (7,305,562) (6,745,722)
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 475,542475 409,195,747
Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source: :
General Fund $ 257,395 257,395
Capital Projects Fund 482,590,642 415,684,074
482,848,037 415,941,469
Less accumulated depreciation (7,305,562) (6,745,724)
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 475,542,475 409,195,745

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
June 30, 2004

Transpoertation Construction
Administration facilities in progress Total
General government:

Land and right-of-way $ — 21,957,196 — 21,957,196
Construction in progress . — — 445,969,392 445,969,392
Buildings and structures 12,091,981 1,295,589 — 13,387,570
Vehicles 229,003 — — 229,003
Office equipment and furniture 1,304,876 — — 1,304,876
13,625,860 23,252,785 445,969,392 482,848,037

Less accumnulated depreciation ’ (7,109,266) (196,296) ' — (7,305,562)
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 6,516,594 23,056,489 445,969,392 475,542,475

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

ot
i

.. o
e

Year ended June 30, 2004
Governmental
Governmental funds capital
funds capital assets
assets July 1, Deletions and June 30,
Function 2003 Additions transfers 2004
General government: _
Administration $ 13,497,504 128,356 — 13,625,860
Transportation facilities 23,252,785 — — 23,252,785
Construction in progress 379,191,180 135,789,995 (68,883,427) 446,097,748
415,941,469 135,918,351 (68,883,427) 482,976,393
Less accumulated depreciation (6,745,722) (559,840) — (7,305,562)

Total governmental funds :
capital assets $ 409,195,747 135,358,511 (68,883,427) 475,670,831

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT BOARD
Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

Statistical information differs from financial statements because it usually covers more than one fiscal year and
— may present nonaccounting data. This information reflects social and economic data and financial trends of MTS.
' l The following statistical information does not reflect special revenue fund transactions, which consist primarily
of operating subsidy transfers to SDTC and SDTI.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM i

General Government Expenditures by Function (Unauditcd)

Last Ten Fiscal Years . 1
Transit o

Fiscal year General and support Capital '1

ended administrative activities Planning projects Debt service Total 5
1995 3 6,268,270 5,704,267 1,899,886 68,025,234 2,017,811 83,915,468
1996 - 7,183,463 6,336,820 1,732,561 148,418,023 7,763,882 171,434,749
1997 5,444,053 5,284,020 2,695,639 63,200,422 9,582,130 86,206,264
1998 5,568,831 5,156,373 3,396,431 52,073,523 14,898,963 81,094,121
1999 6,187,137 5,568,831 1,654,283 -~ 1,654,283 33,239,807 48,304,341
2000 6,423,991 5,713,078 1,963,378 44,636,884 11,356,393 70,093,724
2001 7,272,154 6,777,620 1,864,302 83,182,973 10,647,115 109,744,164
2002 7,872,787 6,492,277 2,903,922 139,374,693 10,457,783 167,101,462
2003 11,618,318 6,639,390 2,827,540 221,691,805 10,534,616 253,311,669
2004 6,236,142 771,256 225,020 149,752,205 15,174,290 172,158,913

Source:  Financial statements includes all governmental funds except the transit operations funding passed through to
transit operators.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

General Government Revenues by Source (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Federal State/local
planning/ operating/
Fiscal year - operating planning Federal State/local
ended funds funds capital funds__capital funds Interest Other Total
1995 $ 1,956,063 3,861,839 4,469,510 54,538,288 4,641,244 4,149,454 73,616,398
1996 1,450,194 4,116,051 32,498,475 87,836,039 9,077,851 7,287,723 142,266,333
1997 2,434,053 4,676,944 7,434,540 91,497,161 13,021,314 4,185,743 123,249,755
1998 1,159,962 5,445,084 18,404,811 22,070,106 16,840,316 556,931 64,477,210
1999 1,192,499 1,159,962 9,208,416 9,208,416 10,075,046 740,290 31,584,629
2000 1,398,973 5,764,734 15,548,765 30,647,194 11,558,859 485,894 65,404,419
2001 1,267,398 6,205,087 46,021,014 42,757,765 15,334,845 861,573 112,447,682
2002 1,879,208 6,738,751 112,218,354 47,253,728 13,759,032 2,269,994 184,119,067
2003 2,234,289 7,252,279 153,807,095 45,079,415 15,812,371 1,394,338 225,579,787
2004 177,885 5,475,771 69,654,463 82,354,560 6,288,711 2,558,878 166,510,268
Source:

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

Financial statements; does not include indirect cost reimbursement ($2,456,925 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2004) or funds
received on behalf of component units ($62,869,255 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2004).
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Component Units and Proprietary Funds
Expenses by Function (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In thousands)
Repairs and Ceontracted
Fiscal year ended Transportation intenance G&A Pension Depreciation Personnel services
San Diego Transit Corporation:
1995 5,136 3,536 3,918 1,726 5,135 41,868 2,066
1996 4,824 2,937 3,262 1,486 5,621 41,455 2,232
1997 4,621 4,824 3,837 3,837 5,612 42,693 2,291
1998 5,188 4,632 2,836 171 5,812 43,626 2,489
1999 4,636 5,198 3,208 862 5,836 47,840 2,633
2000 : 5,988 4,883 3,774 306 5719 47,122 2,507
2001 6,588 4,737 6,466 2,425 6,069 48,710 2,829 iy
2002 5,024 4,815 3,656 3,076 7,960 55,330 3,283 X
2003 7,505 6,167 1,608 3,144 9,114 48,455 —
2004 — 15,671 12,825 6,018 7,730 41,012 —
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
1995 2,745 2,616 4,138 683 12,123 9,736 —
1996 2,906 2,628 4,215 587 19,177 10,507 —
1997 3,552 2,870 4,020 @17 22,114 13,125 — i
1998 3,918 3,701 4,125 426 26,396 14,557 —
1999 4,234 4,339 7,089 210 31,196 16,253 —
2000 4,230 4,527 6,099 543 30,873 17,813 —
2001 7,605 5,247 5,592 452 33,153 18,589 —
2002 6,187 9,778 2,166 456 32,105 20,209 — i
2003 6,563 9,496 3,312 398 31,831 20,632 — )
2004 — 7,385 3,697 — 31,656 32,633 —
Nonmajor funds:
1995 — — 109 — 2 270 —
1996 — — 111 — 3 276 —
1997 — — 123 — 7 298 —
1998 — — 110 — 7 338 —
1999 — — 120 — 7 323 —
2000 — — 136 — 7 403 —
2001 — — 145 — 6 437 —
2002 — — 147 — 2 389 —
2003 — — 185 — 2 459 —
2004 — — — — 21 809 —
MTDB - Contract Services:
1995 . — — 113 — 17 — 5,076
1996 — — 213 ) — 1,014 — 7,738
1997 — — 260 — 1,499 — 10,103
1998 — — 100 —_ 1,521 — 13,743
1999 —_— — 276 — 1,481 — 15,456
2000 — — 143 — 1,530 — 16,730
2001 — — 145 — 2,066 — 22,096
2002 — — 123 — 2,649 — 23,182
2003 — — 530 — 4,130 — 45,790
2004 — — 799 — 4,187 — 49,326

Source: Financial statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Component Units and Proprietary Funds

Revenues by Source (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In thousands)

Federal/
Federal State Local Local
Passenger Operating Operating Operating Capital
Fiscal year ended Fares Funds Funds Funds Funds Interest Other
San Diego Transit Corporation: )
1995 $ 24,891 4,792 542 24,824 1,422 24 3,802
1996 24,923 2,774 1,140 23,345 487 2 3,663
1997 24,015 24,923 3,126 3,126 548 2 4211
1998 24,571 3,525 3,469 21,978 1,063 20 3,990
1999 24,692 3,526 - 3,951 24,142 162 45 5,043
2000 24,100 3,620 4,046 29,210 73 106 5,390
2001 24,572 6,407 4,095 28,552 — 74 5,482
2002 25,914 7,675 6,901 25,130 1,390 104 5,357
2003 23,758 9,653 3,848 33,112 — 24 1,532
2004 22,501 14,400 3,865 29,999 — 46 828
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
1995 12,897 — 2,256 4,688 — — 91
1996 14,119 668 2,134 1,111 — — 2,818
1997 15,641 2,299 384 4,736 — — m
1998 18,589 3,714 484 4,851 — — 175
1999 20,133 2,780 571 9,624 — — 399
2000 20,941 1,980 530 7,338 — — . 327
v ? 2001 22,244 7,664 595 6,360 — — 417
o 2002 22,158 2,810 872 10,833 — — 1,038
2003 . 22,071 6,101 533 9,925 —_ — 291
2004 24,197 8,800 501 8,545 — — 257
Nonmajor funds:
1995 — — — — — — 452
1996 — — — — — — 379
1997 — — — — — — 415
1998 — — — — — — 411
1999 — — — — — — 478
2000 — — — — — — 499
2001 — — — — — — 490
2002 — — — — — — 525
2003 — — — — — — 650
2004 — — — — — — 1,103
MTDB — Contract Services:
1995 2,904 247 32 2,238 169 — —
1996 3,556 523 68 3,91 306 — —
- 1997 5,566 442 57 4,302 256 — —
' 1998 6,626 376 197 6,538 519 — —
Sy 1999 7,209 89 315 8,397 313 — —
= 2000 7,392 170 45 8,848 301 — —
2001 8,704 243 200 12,003 528 — —
2002 10,346 331 433 11,731 — — —
2003 . 15,121 437 747 29,083 — — ) —
2004 17,172 584 339 31,534 — — 3

Source: Financial statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Fare Structure (Unaudited)
Year ended June 30, 2004

Bus cash fares:

Local $ 175
Urban 2.25
Express 2.50-4.00

Senijor/Disabled 1.00
Adirport shuttle 2.25
Shuttles ' 1.00

Trolley cash fares:
Downtown 1.25
1 Station 1.50
2 Stations 1.75
3 Stations : 2.00
4-10 Stations ' 2.25
11-19 Stations 2.50
20+ Stations 3.00
Senior/Disabled 1.00
Bus and trolley monthly passes:

Local/Urban Bus/Express/Trolley 56.00
Express Bus (multizones) 64.00 - 84.00

Senior/Disabled Bus and Trolley 14.00
Youth Bus and Trolley 28.00

Source: Uniform fare structure agreement.

See accompanying independent auditors” report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Component Units and Major Proprietary Fund
o . Farebox Recovery Percentage (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In thousands)
1 San Diego MTDB —
Ee Transit San Diego Contract
Corporation Trolley, Inc. Services
]{ Fiscal year ended:
t 1995 44.90% 64.75% 53.93%
1996 46.39 67.74 4438
f} 1997 43.80 67.56 53.92
L 1998 43.77 43.75 47.07
1999 40.33 62.93 4428
2000 39.45 63.39 45.13
r] 2001 35.97 63.36 40.29
L. 2002 36.24 57.64 4439
~ 2003 3552 54.63 32.65
1 2004 29.79 55.35 34.26

Source: Financial statements; calculated as passenger revenue (including monthly pass sales which are
recorded as a transfer), divided by operating expenses.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
Demographic Statistics (Unaudited)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

San Diego
MTDB State of MTDB County
service area California United States median MTDB average
population population population household service area unemployment
(000 s) (000 s) (000 s) income median age rate
M @ ®) @ ) )
1995 1,922 31,617 266,278 $ — — 6.4%
1996 1,911 31,837 269,394 42,402 33 53
1997 1,934 32,207 272,647 43,522 33 42
1998 1,964 1,934 275,854 275,854 33 3.5
1999 2,009 33,140 279,040 44,049 33 3.1
2000 1,958 33,753 282,178 45,416 33 " 3.0
2001 1,989 34,431 285,094 44,196 ) 32 32
2002 2,024 35,049 287,974 46,913 32 43
2003 2,053 35,612 290,810 48,238 33 43
2004 2,085 36,271 293,655 50,435 34 5.1

(1) Source:  San Diego Association of Governments, estimates as of January 1 (Data prior to 2000 not adjusted for Census 2000).

(2) Source:  California Department of Finance, estimates as of January 1.

(3) Source:  US Census Bureau from 1990 Census (Numbers represent yearly population as of July 1).
(4) Source:  San Diego Association of Governments (Median income is in 1999 dollars).

(5) Source:  San Diego Association of Governments.

(6) Source:  California Employment Development Department, unadjusted (San Diego County only).

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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